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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL- (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The earliest account of the physical appearance of the 
Nanih Waiya Mound and Village site was written in 1775 by 
James Adair, who stated that there were two oblong mounds 
which he interpreted as being old garrisons. At that time 
the mounds were enclosed by a broad, deep ditch and a high 
breast-work, which according to Adair, had been constructed 
by the site's prehistoric occupants to protect their houses 
from the enemy.

The next record of the site's appearance was made in 1843 
when Dr. Gideon Lincecum, noted 19th century Mississippi^ 
naturalist, reported that he went all ar

almost certainly the breast-work mentioned by Adair. According 
to Lincecum, the wall was eight feet high in places. The 
large mound was described by Lincecum as being rounded off, 
oblong and square, two hundred yards in circumference and 
eighty feet j^^^with a flat space on top fifty-two by twenty- 
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In 1854, B. L. C. Wailes, then Mississippi State Geologist, 
recorded that the wall surrounded three sides of the site, 
that it was thirty to forty feet thick at the base, up to ten 
feet high, and contained many gaps. He reported the large 
mound as being at least fifty feet high with a flat area on top 
sixty by one hundred twenty feet. The smaller mound was said 
to be one hundred to one hundred twenty*-five feet by one 
hundred eighty to two hundred feet at the base with a height 
of ho more than ten feet. The remnants of several smaller 
mounds between the two large mounds were__QbserY£d_by Wailes. 
Healsorecorded a slight depress ion HH^HHHHHmm^l 
BHHHI^B which the land owner informed him had been more 
distinct fifteen years earlier. This depression may have been 
a remnant of the lake reported by Lincecum in 1843.

H. S. Halbert, writing in 1898, described the site as con­ 
sisting of a circular rampart (earthen wall) enclosing two 
mounds. According to Halbert, the rampart was approximately 
one and a half miles in circumference and was broken at in­ 
tervals by gaps of from twenty to fifty yards in width 
Halbert stated that Indian-tradition told of there 
being/eighteen gaps. At the time of Halbert's writ} 
rampart was much deteriorated, with about half of

O

been obliterated by plowing. There were still ten 
left of, the structure, ranging from fifty to one h 
ards AH length.

m
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Nanih Waiya Mound and Village site are significant 
both archaeologically and historically.

Surface collections of ceramic and stone artif actual 
material from the village area around the major mound indicate 
an occupation span of from approximately the time of Christ 
until after white contact. The large flat-topped mound was 
probably built during the JYlississippian Period. It was 
abandoned 'when first visited by James Adair in the late 1700s. 
Some of the Choctaw legends state that they built the large 
mound and the surrounding earthen wall soon after they 
arrived in the area. Although this is entirely possible, 
the wall could also date from a much earlier time.

Archaeological investigation. at the site has been minimal 
and a considerable amount of work must be done to answer such 
questions as who built the earthen .wall and when,, and what 
part of the Mississippi an1 " Period1 'saw tne erection of the flat- 
topped mound. The mound and village may be able , to furnish. 
an understanding into several centuries of Choctaw pre-histbry 
Whether or not they can be shown to be a definite part of ,, 
the Choctaw past remains to" be established archaeologically. 
The site >could certainly reveal much concerning the Mississip- 
pian Culture in an area which at present is almost an archaeo­ 
logical void.

In addition to the considerable archaeological potential 
of the site, there are loncj_ traditions associating .it with 
the origin of the Chogtaw or their immigration into the area. 
There are basically two beliefs recorded concern 
first appearance in the vicinity of Nanih Waiya. 
has them coming from a distant land somewhere 
Mississippi. There was a sacred pole which quired- 'tne tribe

)ne morning rne pole did not lean but remained er< 
signaling that the final destination had been ri 
sources say they built the mound and embankment 
where they were instructed to stop by : the sacred 'gbd

spot
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large mound was approximately forty feet high at this time, and 
its base covered about one acre and its summit about one-fourth 
acre. He also reported that the large mound was damaged in 1896 
by a "treasure-seeker's" tunnel. Halbert described the other 
mound as being about two hundred fifty yards north of the big 
mound and to have exhibited fragments of human bone which had 
been brought to the surface by hoeing and plowing.

Dr. Calvin Brown, who like Wailes, in his time, was State 
Geologist, visited Nanih Waiya in J.923. 
of the earthen wall at a distance ______________ ____k ^^^       "~     ^"^^"p^^^^^^^^^^

fLs segment was two and a half to four feet
:ds long. An area resident told Dr. 

Brown that four other segments were still in existence. The 
large mound was described at that time as being a typical 
rectangular mound two hundred eighteen by one hundred forty feet 
at the base and one hundred thirty-two by fifty-six feet on top. 
Its height ranged from twenty-two to twenty-five feet. Although 
Dr. Brown commented that the top apparently had been cultivated, 
he stated that the mound was in an excellent state of preserva­ 
tion and retained its original height. The other mound was again 
listed as being two hundred fifty yards distant and as being 
seven or eight feet high.

A visit to the site by field archaeologists of the Mississippi 
Department of Archives and History in 1971 revealed no remnants 
of the earthen wall. The large mound is essentially'Intact from 
~Dr. Brown's day although local residents report that road con­ 
struction since that time slightly damaged the west side. The 
second mound, after years of cultivation* ^s,jiow only a remnant. 
TKe first few feet of this structure carts'i^^e-f an apparently 
sterile sandy loam soil, but a distinct^ 4^3fk iipi^den approximate­ 
ly six inches thick is found at a obptllV<D$ ;(> iabou1kt\three feet.
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According to another legend, the Choctaw originated in a 
large mound. There is some confusion as to the location of 
their "Mother Mound." Current belief among numerous Choctaw 
residents of the area is that the large mound referred to in the 
legend is the Nanih Waiya Cave Mound, a natural geological 
formation situated approximately a mile and a half east of the 
large flat-topped mound. Three early accounts, however, do seem 
to indicate the man-made mound as the one connected with this 
version. H. S. Halbert, historian and noted authority on the 
Mississippi Choctaw, quotes an old Choctaw by the name of 
Hopahkitubbee as saying the first people of his tribe came out 
of the mound and sunned themselves dry on the earthen rampart. 
This, of course, identifies the site as the man-made mound and 
its associated earthen embankment. Halbert also quotes another 
Choctaw, Pistonatubbee, who gave a very similar account in which 
the Indians also dried out on the rampart.

Adair furnished the earliest description of the mound and 
village site and stated that the name of this complex was 
"Nanne Yah.V He also referred to the Choctaw being "in com­ 
munication with their subterranean brethren of Nanne Yah," which 
seems to be an allusion to the legend of origin within the mound.

According to an informant of Dr. John R. Swanton, long time 
Smithsonian Institution ethnographer, the mounds were used for 
assemblies. A Choctaw called Simpson Tubby stated that the 
first national assembly was held at the "Blue Hole Cave" 
(probably Nanih Waiya Cave Mound) and that later assemblies con­ 
vened at the mound site. Apparently the only historically 
recorded event to happen at the site was a national assembly 
called in 1828 by Chief Greenwood Leflore. The purpose of this 
assembly was to make laws to bring about more harmony with white 
civilization. At this time, laws were passed against drunkenness 
and executing women as witches.

During the yjears of Choctaw emigration from Mississippi be­ 
tween 1830-18^0 r many said they would never go and abandon their 
mother (the mound) as long as she stood. Although historically 
documented events at the site apparently consist only of the 
national assembly of 1828 mentioned above, jfegSir^jiea long his­ 
tory of emotional attachment by the Choc^^$Oj^i^&±te, and it 
is one of the most important sites conne^^q^jj^^i^fltn^^: history.
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